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1.0 NARRATIVE REPORT 

1.01 INTRODUCTION 

The Statement of Accounts summarises the financial performance for financial year 2018/ 19 and the overall financial position of the Council. 
This Narrative Report explains the most significant matters reported in the accounts and provides a simple summary of the Council's overall 
financial position. 

The Statement of Accounts for 2018/ 19 has been prepared on an International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) basis. The framework 
within which these Accounts are prepared and published is regulated by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). 

Whilst these accounts are presented as simply as possible, the use of some technical terminology cannot be avoided. To aid a better 
understanding of the terminology used, a glossary of the terms is included at the end of the document. An explanation of the key financial 
statements including explanatory notes and other relevant supplementary information is also provided. 

The key financial statements set out within this document include: 

• The Statement of Responsibilities declares the respective responsibilities of the Council and the Head of Corporate 
Services and Section 151 Officer for the production of the Statement of Accounts. 

• The Expenditure and Funding Analysis is a note to the financial statements, rather than a key statement. It shows 
all income and expenditure incurred by the Council throughout the year under statutory funding provisions and the 
adjustments that are required to these figures to produce the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
under generally accepted accounting practices. 

• The Movement in Reserves Statement (MiRS) - this Statement sets out the movement on the different reserves held 
by the Council which are analysed into usable and unusable reserves. It analyses the increase or decrease in net worth of the 
Council as a result of incurring expenses, gathering income and from movements in the fair value of the assets. It also 
analyses the movement between reserves in accordance with statutory provisions. 

• The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) - this Statement brings together all the functions 
of the Council and summarises all the resources it has generated, consumed or set aside in providing services during the 
year. As such, it is intended to show the true financial position of the Council, before allowing for the concessions provided 
by statute to raise council tax according to different rules and the ability to divert particular expenditure to be met from 
capital resources. 

• The Balance Sheet - this records the Council's year-end financial position. It shows the balances and reserves at the 
Council's disposal, its long-term debt, net current assets or liabilities, and summarises information on the non-current assets 
held. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the 
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1.0 NARRATIVE REPORT 

Council can use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations 
on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). 
The second category of reserves is those that the Council cannot use to provide services. This category of reserves includes 
reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become 
available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement line 'Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations'. 

• The Cash Flow Statement - this summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising from transactions with third parties 
for both capital and revenue. 

• Notes to the Financial Statements - the notes provide more detail about the items contained in the key financial 
statements, the Council's Accounting Policies and other information to aid the understanding of the financial statements. 

• The Collection Fund - the Council is responsible for collecting council tax and local business rates. The proceeds of council tax are 
distributed to the Council, Hampshire County Council, Hampshire Police Authority, Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority and local 
town/parish councils. Local business rates are distributed between the Council, the Government, Hampshire County Council and 
Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority. The Fund shows the income due and application of the proceeds. 

The Independent Auditor's Report explains how the Council's auditors, Ernst and Young LLP, plan their audit and the basis on which they 
provide an opinion on the Council's Statement of Accounts. It also gives the auditor's opinion on the Council's arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources in the year. 

The Annual Governance Statement accompanies the Statement of Accounts and explains how the Council ensures that its business is 
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used 
economically, efficiently and effectively. It is not covered by the auditor's opinion but is considered by the auditor and reported on by 
exception in the auditor's report if it is not compliant with proper practice. 
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1.0 NARRATIVE REPORT 

1.02 HART DISTRICT 

Hart District is primarily rural, covers some 21,500 hectares (83 sq. miles) and is situated in north-east Hampshire, bordering both Surrey and 
Berkshire. It is a popular place to live, as it benefits from low unemployment, low crime rates and good schools. It has a healthy, active 
population with high participation in sports and leisure. There are approximately 95,000 residents and an estimated 36,000 homes in Hart. 
There is an increasing and ageing population, with the number of residents expected to rise to I 05,800 by 2024 and increases expected in 
older age groups in particular. The main centres of population including Fleet, Yateley and Blackwater/Hawley are in the north and east of the 
district and just over 30% of the population live in the rural areas. 

1.03 HART DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Hart District Council ("the Council") comprises 33 Councillors who represent their 11 wards. Each ward has 3 Councillors who represent it, 
although once elected Councillors will make decisions for the whole district, not just for the ward they were elected for. Elections are held in 
3 out of every 4 years, with one seat in each ward contested at each election. The political make-up of the Council is currently: Conservative 
Party I I, Community Campaign Hart I I, Liberal Democrat Party I0, and one independent councillor. 

The Council is a multifunctional organisation. Its policies are directed by the political leadership and implemented by the Officers of the 
Council. The Council has adopted the Leader and Cabinet model as its political management structure. The Leader of the Council has 
responsibility for the appointment of members of the Cabinet, the allocation of Portfolios and the delegation of Executive Functions. Cabinet 
Members are held to account by a system of scrutiny. 

Supporting the work of Councillors is the organisational structure of the Council headed by the Joint Chief Executives, who are supported by 
four Heads of Service. 

During the year the Council establishment was I 02 full-time equivalent employees. Most services are outsourced or shared with other 
councils. 

Hart District Council - 6 - Statement of Accounts 2018/2019 



1.0 NARRATIVE REPORT 

1.04 CORPORATE STRATEGY 

The Council has adopted a 5-year Corporate Plan for the period 2017-2022. It provides a focus for our activities and services and will inform 
decision making and allocation of resources across the Council. The Corporate Plan is centred around four priorities: 

• A Thriving Local Economy 
• A Clean, Green and Safe Environment 
• Healthy Communities and People 
• An Efficient and Effective Council 

The Corporate Plan is underpinned by a Service Plan which will run for the lifetime of the plan and be updated annually. This shows in detail 
how the Council will make progress against the priorities in the Corporate Plan. Each year a review is undertaken to update the Service Plan 
and ensure it continues to highlight the significant projects that the Council is taking forward in pursuit of its four corporate priorities. 

For the 2019/20 Service Plan, measures that the Council intends to deliver include continuing to implement the new waste contract, supporting 
local communities to have more say in the future of their area, promoting the delivery of affordable housing and infrastructure in new 
developments, and initiatives to ensure the Council can achieve a greater level of financial self-sustainability. 

Achievements in 20 18/ 19 

The Council has made progress in a number of areas over the 2018/ 19 financial year. The majority relate to activities committed to in the 2017 
- 2022 Corporate Plan, although it has also taken advantage of opportunities that have arisen throughout the year. 

Achievements include: 

• Successfully launched the £44 million joint waste and recycling contract with Basingstoke and Deane Borough Council and Serco in 
October 2018 

• Successfully completed the examination in public of the Hart Local Plan Strategy 

• Led on an innovative project bid to prevent Domestic Abuse and support victims across Hampshire and Dorset securing £1,297, 125 of 
funding for the partnership 
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1.0 NARRATIVE REPORT 

• Implemented an Action Plan in response to the LGA Peer Review of March 2018 including: 

o Creation of a new vision for Hart in 2040 on which the public were consulted during December 2018 
o Publication of a new Organisational Development Strategy outlining the key skills and approaches needed for the Council into 

the future and the plans in place to make this happen 

• Completion of £390,000 of improvement works to Church Road Car Park, which commenced in 2017/ 18 

• Received the "Innovative Programme Award" from the Federation of Small Businesses 

• Submitted a bid to MHCLG and Homes England for a Garden Communities Settlement 

• Approved a framework for Commercialisation and an Inward Investment Strategy, with £500,000 ring-fenced for an invest to grow 
strategy 

• Received the Platinum Stray Dogs Footprint Award, from the RSPCA, after holding the Gold Footprint Award for over 5 years 

• Securing of an additional £14,573 of match funded grant towards the Hampshire Making Safe Scheme, allowing the scheme to continue 
until at least March 2019 

• Celebrated the first anniversary of the Hart Lottery which has supported 70 local causes and raised over £40,000 to date 

• Implemented the requirements of GDPR across the Council as well as new legislation associated with homelessness prevention 
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1.0 NARRATIVE REPORT 

1.05 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE - REVENUE 

The Council's actual outturn for 2018/ 19 was a net nil spend, £27k higher than the budgeted deficit of £27k. 

Corporate Services 3,494 6,199 2,705 

Community Services 1,231 (4,428) (5,659) 

Regulatory Services 1,396 1,619 223 

Technical and Env. Maintenance 2,382 1,997 (385) 

Other Operating Expenditure 2,969 3,011 42 

Financial & Investment Income 111 575 464 

Other Reserves and Provisions 3,051 7,996 4,944 

Total Net Service Expenditure 14,634 16,967 2,333 

Funding 

New Homes Bonus (2,148) (2,148) (0) 

Local Business Rates (737) (689) 48 

Business Rate Top Up 0 (838) (838) 

Council Tax Receipts (9,811) (9,798) 13 

Specific Grant 0 (764) (764) 

Total Funding (12,696) (14,237) (1,541) 
Year End Accounting Adjustments 
(Pensions and Fixed Assets) 

(1,965) (3,099) (I, 134) 

Revenue (Surplus)/Deficit (27) (369) (342) 

Contribution to Earmarked Reserves 0 369 369 

Grand Total (27) 0 
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1.0 NARRATIVE REPORT 

1.06 CAPITAL BUDGET 

The overall performance against the 2018/ 19 capital budget is shown in the table below: 

Corporate Management 534 3 (531) 

Housing and Customer Services 890 1,230 340 

Leisure 238 14 (224) 

Environmental Promotion 2,680 745 (1,935) 

Technical Services 2,652 392 (2,260) 

6,994 2,384 (4,610) 

The significant capital expenditure in 2018/ 19 was on Disabled Facilities Grants, £865k and SI 06 £780k. The major areas of underspend on the 
capital programme were: 

• Environmental promotion - Bramshot Farm SANG scheme, underspend of £ 1.313m - spending on scheme stopped until further 
Suitable Alternative Natural Green Space (SANGS) income is received. 

• Technical Services- Refuse Vehicles -The budget contained £2.160m for a loan for Refuse Vehicles to SERCO. £1.741m was paid out 
for the loan but this debt is shown on the balance sheet as a long-term debtor. 

The council's overall Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) decreased from £20,566,000 to £16,263,000, a reduction of £4,902.000. This 
decrease was due to financing of prior years' expenditure by capital grants and other contributions not received until 2018/19. Unfinanced 
capital spend is repaid via future charges to revenue (Minimum Revenue Provision), unless additional capital receipts are obtained to allow for 
the repayment of the CFR early. 
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1.0 NARRATIVE REPORT 

The capital programme for 2018/ 19 was financed as follows: 

Unfinanced capital spend 

Disabled Facilities Grant 

Developers Contributions 

Other Contributions 

Usable Capital Receipts 

679 

865 

780 

55 

5 

2,384 
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1.0 NARRATIVE REPORT 

Financing of Capital Expenditure 2018/19 
£'000 

55, 5 
.. 

• Unfinanced Capital Spend Disabled Facilities Grant Developers Contributions 

Other Contributions • Usable Capital Receipts 

1.07 PENSION LIABILITY 

The application of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 19 has resulted in a pension liability of £24.854m shown in the Balance Sheet, a 
decrease of£ 1.996m in the year. 

The liability represents our share of the liability to Hampshire County Council's Pension Fund. This amount is matched by a Pensions Reserve 
also shown on the Balance Sheet and therefore has no immediate impact on the Council's overall financial position and its General Fund 
Balances (small differences may arise over the balance sheet date due to accruals being made for invoices not yet received). 

Further details are set out in the Accounting Policies and Pension Note (Note 5.14). 
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1.0 NARRATIVE REPORT 

IAS 19 does not directly impact on the actual level of employer contributions paid to the Hampshire County Council Fund. Employers' levels of 
contributions are determined by triennial actuarial valuations which are based on the Fund's actual investment strategy (rather than being based 
on corporate bond yields). 

The movement to the Fund is set out in more detail in note 5.14. The total liability has an impact on the net worth of the Council as recorded 
in the Balance Sheet. However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the council remains sound. 
The deficit on the scheme will be recovered through increased contributions over the remaining life of the employees as assessed by the 
actuary. 

1.08 FlNANCIAL OUTLOOK 

The Council no longer receives Revenue Support Grant from 2018/ 19. It is uncertain whether the Council will be able to achieve substantial 
increases in Non-Domestic Rates once 75% retention is introduced in 2020/21 as commercial development on a large scale is not anticipated. 
New Homes Bonus funding is also likely to reduce significantly. 

However, continuing housing development is likely to lead to substantial increases in the council tax base. This growth, combined with savings 
from the leisure outsourcing contract, will enable the Council to become self-sufficient and balance its budget in the years ahead. Further 
income generation opportunities will also be explored. A Commercialisation Strategy to replace funds lost from reductions in New Homes 
Bonus was approved by Cabinet in August 2018. 

It should be noted that there is considerable uncertainty nationally about local government finance levels from 2020/21, as a Fair Funding 
Review is currently under way which may lead to significant changes in the distribution of funding between council tiers. 

Medium Term Financial Plan 

The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is based on an analysis of the key influences on the Council's future financial position and an 
assessment of the main financial risks facing the Council. The financial forecast set out in the table below models income and expenditure and 
resources available over the next four years, and is considered to be the most likely outcome based on forecasts and assumptions for pay and 
price inflation, etc. 
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1.0 NARRATIVE REPORT 

Given the uncertainty referred to above, the council continually models a range of MTFP scenarios. These are updated as more information 
becomes available or assumptions change. 

Net Costs of Services 9,826 10,189 10,394 10,600 

12 12 12Debt Interest 

(2,283) (1,789) (I, 171) (505)New Homes Bonus 

Net Budget Requirement 7,556 8,412 9,235 10,107 

Retained Business Rates (1,258) (1,280) (1,320) (1,360) 

Revenue Support Grant 0 0 0 0 

Collection Fund surplus/deficit (24) 0 0 0 

NNDR Reserve 390 0 0 0 

Council Tax Income (6,792) (7,083) (7,362) (7,648) 

Council Tax Increase (202) (203) (205) (205) 

SI 06 Receipts (53) (53) (53) (53) 

SANG Receipts (61) (220) (220) (220) 

Commercial Income Target 0 (42) (544) (1,090) 

MRP/Loan repayments 445 469 469 469 

0 0 0 0To/From Reserves 
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1.0 NARRATIVE REPORT 

1.09 FURTHER INFORMATION 

Further information about these accounts is available from: 

Head of Corporate Services 
Hart District Council 
Civic Offices 
Harlington Way 
Fleet 
Hampshire 
GU51 4AE 

Telephone: 01252 622122 
Email: enquiries@hart.gov.uk 

1.10 INSPECTION AND AUDIT 

Interested members of the public have the statutory right to inspect these accounts before the audit is completed. For the 2018/ 19 accounts, 
the inspection period was I June to 12 July 2019. These dates were advertised on the Council's website. 
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2.0 STATEMENT OF RESPONBILITIES 

2.0 I THE COUNCIL'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
The council is required to: 

• Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the 
administration of those affairs. In this council, that officer is the Head of Corporate Services, Andrew Vallance. 

• Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets. 
• Approve the Statement of Accounts. 

2.02 CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER RESPONSIBILITIES 
The chief financial officer is responsible for the preparation of the authority's Statement of Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set 
out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code). 

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the chief financial officer has: 
• selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently, 
• made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent, 
• complied with the local authority Code. 

The Section I 51 Officer also: 
• has kept proper accounting records which were up to date. 
• has taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities 

2.03 CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER CERTIFICATE 2.04 CHAIRMAN OF AUDIT COMMITTEE CERTIFICATE 

I certify that the Statement of Accounts 2018/ I 9 present a true and I certify that the Statement of Accounts 2018/ 19 has received the full 
fair view of the financial position of the council (the Balance Sheet) approval of Members. 
and of its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2019. 

Signed 
Date Signed 

Date 
Andrew Vallance, cPFA MBA MA (OXON) 

Head of Corporate Services and S151 Officer Chris Axam 
Chairman, Audit Committee 
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3.0 COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than 
the amount to be funded from taxation. Councils raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from 
the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

Community Services 

Corporate Services 

Regulatory Services 

Technical and Env. Maintenance 

Cost of Services 

Other Operating Expenditure 

Financial & Investment Income 

Taxation and non-specific grant income and Expenditure 

(Surplus) or Deficit on provision of services 
(Surplus) or Deficit on the revaluation of property, plant 
and equipment assets 
(Surplus) or Deficit on the revaluation of available-for-sale 
financial assets 

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) 

3.04 

3.05 

3.06 

2,369 

26,777 

4,388 

9,624 

43,158 

2,969 

912 

12,900 

59,939 

(1,585) 

(19,739) 

(2,716) 

(8,403) 

(32,444) 

(304) 

(159) 

(30,625) 

(63,531) 

784 

7,038 

1,672 

1,221 

10,714 

2,665 

753 

(17,725) 

(3,592) 

2,414 

(2) 

190 

3,169 

24,806 

3,362 

9,761 

41,097 

3,109 

941 

11,604 

56,751 

(7,597) 

(18,608) 

(1,743) 

(7,764) 

(35,710) 

(98) 

(367) 

(25,841) 

(62,016) 

(4,428) 

6,199 

1,619 

1,997 

5,387 

3,011 

575 

(14,237) 

(5,265) 

133 

II 

(2,970) 

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 2,602 (2,826) 

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (991) (8,092) 

*Note, some totals may not cast by £1,000 rounding's but need to remain to reconcile through the accounts 
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4.0 MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT 

The Movement in Reserves Statement shows the movement from the start to the end of the year on the different reserves held by the council, 
analysed into 'usable reserves' (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other 'unusable reserves'. The 
Statement shows how the movements in year of the council's reserves are broken down between gains and losses incurred in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting practices and the statutory adjustments required to return to the amounts chargeable to council tax (or rents) for 
the year. The Net Increase/Decrease line shows the statutory General Fund Balance movement in the year following those adjustments. This 
balance includes earmarked reserves which have been segregated within the General Fund for specific projects. 

Balance at 3 I March 2018 16,732 641 9,133 26,505 (4,097) 22,408 

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 5,265 0 0 5,265 2,826 8,092 

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under 
(2,777) 105 352 (2,321) 2,321

regulation (Note 4.0 I) 

Increase or (decrease) in year 2,488 105 352 2,945 5,147 8,092 

Balance at 3 I March 2019 19,220 746 9,485 29,450 1,050 30,500 
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4.0 MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT 

I I I I I J 11 

Balance at 3 I March 2017 13,776 352 5,043 19,171 2,246 21,417 

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 3,592 0 0 3,592 (2,601) 991 

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under 
(636) 289 4,089 3,742 (3,742) 0

regulation (Note 4.0 I) 

Increase or (decrease) in year 2,956 289 4,089 7,334 (6,343) 991 

Balance at 3 I March 20 18 16,732 641 9,132 26,505 (4,097) 22,408 
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5.0 BALANCE SHEET 

Property, plant & 
equipment 

5.01 

Other Land and Buildings 38,930 36,835 

Vehicles, Plant, Furniture 
and Equipment 

900 1,063 

Infrastructure Assets 152 201 

Community Assets 4,019 3,954 

The Balance Sheet shows the value of the assets and liabilities 
recognised by the council as at the balance sheet date. The net assets 
of the council (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held 
by the council. 

Surplus Assets 45 51 

44,046 42,104 

Short term borrowing 5.08 (1,064) (1,372)
Investment properties 5.02 70 70 

Short term creditors 5.09 (8,328) (10,042)
Intangible Assets 5.03 35 17 

Provisions 5.10 (476) (334)Long term debtors 5.05 0 1,321 
Current Liabilities (9,869) (11,748)

Long Term Assets 44,151 43,512 

Long term borrowing 5.08 (13,532) (12,277)Short term investments 11,01 I 12,000 
Pension Liability 5.15 (26,850) (24,854)Assets held for sale 5.07 88 88 
Long Term Liabilities (40,382) (37,130)Short term debtors 5.05 4,699 4,517 

Cash and cash equivalents 5.06 12,711 19,261 
Net Assets 22,408 30,500Current Assets 28,508 35,866 
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5.0 BALANCE SHEET 

Usable reserves 

Earmarked Reserves 5.11 

General Fund 

Capital Receipts 

Capital Grants Unapplied 

Unusable reserves 

Revaluation Reserve 5.12.1 

Available for Sale Financial 
Instruments Reserve 

5.12.2 

Capital Adjustment Account 5.12.3 

Financial Instrument 
Adjustment Account 

5.12.4 

Pension Reserve 5.12.5 

Collection Fund 5.12.6 

Accumulated Absences 5.12.7 

11,194 

5,537 

641 

9,133 

26,505 

3,715 

11 

19,358 

235 

(26,693) 

(680) 

(43) 

(4,097) 

Total Reserves 22,408 

13,682 

5,537 

746 

9,484 

29,450 

3,451 

0 

22,564 

23 

(24,773) 

(167) 

(48) 

1,050 

30,500 

Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of 
reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the council 
may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a 
prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use 
(for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to 
fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second category of 
reserves is those that the council is not able to use to provide 
services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold 
unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), 
where amounts would only become available to provide services if 
the assets were sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown 
in the Movement in Reserves Statement line 'Adjustments between 
accounting basis and funding basis under regulations'. 
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6.0 CASHFLOW STATEMENT 

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the council during the reporting period. The statement shows how 
the council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net 
cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the council are funded by way of taxation and 
grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the council. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been 
made for resources which are intended to contribute to the council's future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful 
in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the council. 

This cash flow statement is prepared using the indirect method whereby the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services is adjusted for non­
cash items, removing the effects of accruals and extracting transactions relating to investing or financing activities. 

Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services 3,592 5,265 

Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-cash movements 7,924 3,133 

Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services that are investing and 
(5,303) (7,320)

financing activities 

Net cash flows from Operating Activities 6.01 6,213 1,078 

Investing Activities 6.02 585 6,016 

Financing Activities 6.03 (906) (544) 

Net increase or (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5,892 6,550 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 6,820 12,712 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 5.06 12,712 19,262 
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3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 

3.0 I EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS 
The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources (government grants, rents, council tax 

and business rates) by local authorities in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting practices. It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the council's services. 
Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement. 

I ti 

Community Services 1,044 260 784 778 5,206 (4,428) 

Corporate Services 2,278 (4,759) 7,038 3,049 (3,149) 6,199 

Regulatory Services 1,640 (31) 1,672 1,545 (75) 1,619 
Technical and Env. 

1,424 203 1,221 1,539 (457) 1,997
Maintenance 

Cost of Services 6,387 (4,328) 10,714 6,911 1,524 5,387 
Other income and 

(9,343) 4,964 (14,307) (9,398) 1,254 (I 0,652)
expenditure 

(Surplus) or Deficit (2,956) 636 (3,592) (2,487) 2,778 (5,265) 

Opening General Fund 
Balance 
Plus Surplus on General Fund 
in year 
Closing General Fund 
Balance 

(13,777) 

(2,956) 

(16,733) 

(16,733) 

(2,487) 

(19,220) 

Includes transfers to earmarked reserves 
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3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 

3.02 NOTE TO THE EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS 

Community Services 5,217 (10) (I) 5,206 
Corporate Services (2,656) (494) I (3,149) 
Regulatory Services (53) (20) (2) (75) 
Technical and Env. Maintenance (438) (17) (2) (457) 
Net Cost of Services 2,070 (541) (5) 1,524 

Other income and expenditure from the Expenditure and Funding Analysis 1,250 (510) 513 1,254 

Difference between General Fund surplus or deficit and Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement Surplus or Deficit on the Provision 3,320 (1,051) 508 2,778 
of Services 

Hart District Council - 24 - Statement of Accounts 2018/2019 



3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 

Community Services 278 ( 15) (2) 261 
Corporate Services (4,373) (38) (9) (4,420) 
Regulatory Services (341) (33) (3) (378) 
Technical and Env. Maintenance (81) (14) 304 209 
Net Cost of Services (4,517) (100) 290 (4,327) 

Other income and expenditure from the Expenditure and Funding Analysis 4,640 (472) 797 4,965 

Difference between General Fund surplus or deficit and Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 122 (573) 1,087 638 
Services 

Hart District Council - 25 - Statement of Accounts 20 18/20 19 



3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 

Adjustments for Capital Purposes 

For Services this column adds in depreciation, impairment and revaluations gains and losses. 

Other operating expenditure - adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income on disposal of assets and the amounts written 
off for those assets. 
Financing and investment income and expenditure - the statutory charges for capital financing i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision 
and other revenue contributions are deducted from other income and expenditure as these are not chargeable under generally 
accepted accounting practices. 
Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure - capital grants are adjusted for income not chargeable under 
generally accepted accounting practices. Revenue grants are adjusted from those receivable in the year to those receivable without 
conditions or for which conditions were satisfied throughout the year. The Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income and Expenditure 
line is credited with capital grants receivable in the year without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied in the year 

Net change for the Pensions Adjustments 
Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits pension related expenditure and income: 

For services this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the authority as allowed by statute and the 
replacement with current service costs and past service costs. 
For Financing and investment income and expenditure -the net interest on the defined benefit liability is charged to the CIES. 

Other Differences 
Other differences between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and amounts 
payable/receivable to be recognised under statute: 

For services this represents the change in the accumulated absences reserve attributable to each service. 
For Financing and investment income and expenditure the other differences column recognises adjustments to the General 
Fund for the timing differences for premiums and discounts. 
The charge under Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure represents the difference between what is 
chargeable under statutory regulations for council tax and NDR that was projected to be received at the start of the year and the 
income recognised under generally accepted accounting practices in the Code. This is a timing difference as any difference will be 
brought forward in future Surpluses or Deficits on the Collection Fund. 
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3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 

3.03 INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ANALYSED BY NATURE 

The authority's expenditure and income is analysed as follows: 

Expenditure 

Employee benefits expenses 

Other services expenses 

Depreciation, amortisation, impairment 

Interest payments 

Precepts and levies 

Non-domestic rates tariff, levy and deficit charges 

Total Expenditure 

Income 

Fees, charges and other service income 

Interest and investment income 

Income from council tax and non-domestic rates 

Government grants and contributions 

Gain on the disposal of assets 

Total Income 

Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 

5,353 

32,477 

5,328 

912 

2,969 

12,900 

59,939 

(31,321) 

(I 59) 

(23,952) 

(7,796) 

(304) 

(63,531) 

(3,592) 

6,296 

30,603 

4,198 

941 

3,109 

11,604 

56,751 

(34,705) 

(367) 

(22,929) 

(3,917) 

(98) 

(62,016) 

(5,265) 
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3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 

3.04 OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURE 

Parish council precepts 2,969 3,109 

(Gains)/loss on the disposal of non-current assets (304) (98) 

2,665 3,01 I 

3.05 FINANCING AND INVESTMENT INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 

Interest payable and similar charges 282 272 

Net interest on the defined benefit liability 630 670 

Interest receivable and similar income (129) (367) 

(Income) and expenditure in relation to investment properties and changes in their fair value (30) 0 

753 575 
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3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 

3.06 TAXATION AND NON SPECIFIC GRANT INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 

Council tax income 

Revenue Support Grant 

Non-domestic rates income and safety net 

Non-domestic rates tariff, levy and deficit charges 

Non-ring fenced government grants 

Capital grants and contributions 

t II 

(9,394) 

(82) 

(14,558) 

12,900 

(2,407) 

(4,183) 

(17,725) 

(9,798) 

0 

(13,131) 

11,604 

(2,192) 

(720) 

(14,237) 

The breakdown of 'non-ring fenced government grants' and 'capital grants and contributions' can be seen in more detail in note 3. 12 Grant 
Income. 

3.07 MATERIAL ITEMS OF INCOME AND EXPENSE 

The council incurs significant expenditure through its delivery of services to the council tax payer and receives significant income from a 
number of sources to fund this. For example, the council incurs a significant proportion of it's spend on benefit payments, which is funded 
predominantly by government grants. This income and expenditure is reported in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and 
is supported by notes within this section. 

The council does not consider that there were any other material items of income and/or expense that weren't incurred and/or received in the 
normal day to day provision of the services. 
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3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 

3.08 AGENCY SERVICES 

The council provides a number of services on behalf of Hampshire County Council. In 2018/ 19 the council received £ I 55,970 for providing 
these services (20 17/ I 8 £198, 159). 

3.09 MEMBERS ALLOWANCES 

The council paid the following amounts to members of the council during the year: 

Allowances 238 237 

Expenses 7 7 

245 244 
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3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 

3.10 OFFICERS' REMUNERATION AND TERMINATION BENEFITS 

3.10.1 Remuneration 
The remuneration paid to the council's senior employees is shown below. 

2018/19 96,183 3,869 0 14,445 114,497
Joint Chief Executive 

2017/18 94,297 3,869 0 13,295 111,461 

2018/19 96,183 3,871 0 14,445 114,498
Joint Chief Executive 

2017/18 93,337 3,869 0 13,161 110,367 

Section 151 Officer and Head of 2018/19 80,178 1,239 0 12,044 93,461 
Corporate Services 2017/18 74,981 1,239 0 10,694 86,914 

2018/19 67,852 3,000 0 10,190 81,042
Head of Environmental Maintenance 

2017/18 66,522 3,000 0 9,380 78,902 

2018/19 86,484 1,198 39,751 9,839 137,272
Head of Regulatory Services 

2017/18 65,136 1,239 0 9,184 75,559 

2018/19 0 0 0 0 0 
Head of Housing"' 

2017/18 37,646 716 0 5,245 43,607 

2018/19 59,826 1,661 0 9,034 70,521
Head of Community Services,f::f; 

2017/18 0 0 0 0 0 

* Head of Housing left post in October 2017 

** Head of Community Services started in May 2018 
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3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 

The council's other employees whose remuneration, excluding employer's pension contributions, was £50,000 or more in bands of £5,000 
were: 

£50,000 to £54,999 

£55,000 to £59,999 

£60,000 to £64,999 

£65,000 to £69,999 

3 2 

0 

2 

I 

6 s 

3.10.2 Termination Benefits 

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the council to terminate an officer's employment before the normal 
retirement date or an officer's decision to accept voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate service in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at the earlier of when the council can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or 
when the council recognises costs for a restructuring. 

Table on following page. 
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3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 

The number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other redundancies are set out in the table below: 

£0 - £20,000 0 0 I 0 0 1,783 0 

£20,00 I - £40,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

£40,00 I - £60,000 0 0 0 0 0 57,024 

0 0 1,783 57,024 

3.11 EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS 

The council has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts and certification of grant claims provided by 
the council's external auditors, Ernst and Young LLP. 

Fees payable to external auditors with regard to external audit services carried out by the appointed 
auditor for the year 

54 44 

Fees payable to external auditors for the certification of grant claims and returns for the year 13 10 

67 54 
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3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 

3.12 GRANT INCOME 

Grants, third party contributions and donations are recognised as due to the council when there is reasonable assurance that: 

• The council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 
• The grants or contributions will be received. 

Amounts recognised as due to the council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement until conditions attached 
to the revenue grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service 
potential embodied in the asset acquired using the revenue grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or 
the future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor. 

Monies advanced as revenue grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. 
When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) 
or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non ring-fenced grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement they are reversed out of the General Fund 
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital 
Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants 
Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure. 
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3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 

The council credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 2018/ 19: 

Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income 

Non-ring fenced Government Grants 

New Homes Bonus 

Revenue Support Grant 

Council Tax Freeze Grant 

Other Non-ring fenced Government Grants. 

Capital Grants and Contributions 

Developer's Leisure Contributions 

Donated Land 

Other Capital Grants and Contributions 

Credited to Services 

Housing Benefits Subsidy 

Disabled Facilities Grant 

Welfare 

Other Grants and Contributions 

(2,276) (2,148) 

(82) 0 

0 0 

( 131) (43) 

(2,490) (2,192) 

(3,995) (705) 

0 0 

(188) (15) 

(4,183) (720) 

(6,673) (2,912) 

(15,459) 

(697) 

(608) 

(883) 

(14,051) 

(685) 

(758) 

(432) 

(17,646) ( I 5,925) 
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3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 

The council has received a number of grants, contributions and donations that have yet to be recognised as income as they have conditions 
attached to them that will require the monies or property to be returned to the giver. The balances at the year-end are as follows: 

Grampian Conditions 2,575 4,821 

2,575 4,821 

These Grampian conditions prohibit development to begin until a specific action has been completed. If the development was cancelled these 
funds would be payable back to the developer. 

3.13 OPERATING LEASES 

3.13.1 Council as Lessee 

Leases that do not meet the definition of finance leases are accounted for as operating leases and the expenditure is charged to service revenue 
accounts on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The land and buildings elements of a lease require separate identification for both 
lease classifications and subsequent valuation. In most cases, the land element of a lease will be an operating lease. 

The council has not entered into any operating leases to procure any property, plant, vehicles or equipment. 

3.13.2 Council as Lessor 

Where the council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. 
Rental income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are 
made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments. 
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3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 

The Council owns a number of property, plant and equipment assets that are leased to other bodies for one or a combination of the following 
purposes: 

To gain rental income from its investment properties 
For economic development purposes to provide suitable affordable accommodation for local businesses. 
To provide leisure facilities for public use. 

The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years are: 

Not later than one year (790) (1,182) 

Later than one year and not later than five years (5,431) (5,875) 

Later than five years (7,139) (5,598) 

(13,360) (12,655) 

3.14 CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 

At 31 March 2019 the council did not have any construction contracts. 
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4.0 NOTES TO THE MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT 

4.01 ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING BASIS UNDER REGULATIONS 

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure recognised by the authority in the year in 
accordance with proper accounting practice to arrive at the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the 
authority to meet future capital and revenue expenditure. The following sets out a description of the reserves that the adjustments are made 
against. 

General Fund Balance 
The General Fund is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of an authority are required to paid and out of which all liabilities of the 
authority are to be met, except to the extent that statutory rules might provide otherwise. These rules can also specify the financial year in 
which liabilities and payments should impact on the General Fund Balance, which is not necessarily in accordance with proper accounting 
practice. The General Fund Balance therefore summarises the resources that the council is statutorily empowered to spend on its services or 
on capital investment ( or the deficit of resources that the council is required to recover) at the end of the financial year. 

Capital Receipts Reserve 
The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets, which are restricted by statute from being used 
other than to fund new capital expenditure or to be set aside to finance historical capital expenditure. The balance on the reserve shows the 
resources that have yet to be applied for these purposes at the year-end. 

Capital Grants Unapplied 
The Capital Grants Unapplied Account (Reserve) holds the grants and contributions received towards capital projects for which the council 
has met the conditions that would otherwise require repayment of the monies but which have yet to be applied to meet expenditure. The 
balance is restricted by grant terms as to the capital expenditure against which it can be applied and/or the financial year in which this can take 
place. 
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4.0 NOTES TO THE MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT 

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources 

Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement are different from revenue for the year calculated in accordance with statutory 
requirements 

Pensions Costs (transferred to (or from) the Pensions Reserve) 

Financial Instruments (transferred to the Financial Instruments Adjustments Account) 

Council tax and NDR (transfers to (or from) Collection Fund) 

Holiday Pay (transferred to the Accumulated Absences Reserve) 

Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provisions of Services in relation to 
capital expenditure (these items are charged to the Capital Adjustment Account) 

Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources 

Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources 

Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds from revenue to the Capital Receipts Reserve 

Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (transfer from the Capital Adjustment Account) 

Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances (transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account) 

1,051 

211 

(513) 

5 

(2,999) 352 

(2,245) 352 

(110) 110 

(422) 

0 

Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources 

Adjustments to Capital Resources 

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital expenditure 

Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 

(532) 110 

(5) 

(5) 0 

Total Adjustments (2,777) 105 352 
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4.0 NOTES TO THE MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT 

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources 

Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement are different from revenue for the year calculated in accordance with statutory requirements 

Pensions Costs (transferred to (or from) the Pensions Reserve) 

Financial Instruments (transferred to the Financial Instruments Adjustments Account) 

Council tax and NDR (transfers to (or from) Collection Fund) 

Holiday Pay (transferred to the Accumulated Absences Reserve) 

Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provisions of Services in relation to capital 
expenditure (these items are charged to the Capital Adjustment Account) 

Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources 

Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources 

Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds from revenue to the Capital Receipts Reserve 

Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (transfer from the Capital Adjustment Account) 

Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances (transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account) 

573 

(235) 

(797) 

13 

297 4,089 

(148) 4,089 

(310) 310 

(178) 

0 

Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources 

Adjustments to Capital Resources 

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital expenditure 

Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 

(488) 310 

(21) 

(21) 0 

Total Adjustments (636) 289 4,089 
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5.0 NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET 

5.0 I PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others, or for 
administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment. 

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and equipment is capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is 
probable that the future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the authority and the cost of the item can 
be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset's potential to deliver future economic benefits or service 
potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred. 

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising the purchase price plus any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and 
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating on the manner intended by management. 

Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and any consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and 
Non-specific Grant Income and Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made 
conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account. Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement. 

Charges to Revenue for Non-current Assets - Services and support services are debited with the following amounts to record the cost 
of holding non-current assets during the year: 

• depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service 
• revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve 

against which the losses can be written off 
• amortisation of intangible assets attributable to the service 

The council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or amortisation. However, it is 
required to make an annual contribution from revenue, the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), towards the reduction in its overall borrowing 
requirement (equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the council in accordance with statutory guidance). 
Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisation are therefore replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance, by 
way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the 
two. 
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5.0 NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET 

Component Accounting - Where components of an asset are significant in value in relation to the value of the asset as a whole, and they 
have substantially different economic lives, they will be recognised separately. Components will be recognised separately as and when they are 
replaced or re-valued. Individual assets valued at less than £200,000 will be disregarded for componentisation. 

5.01.1 Revaluations 

The council carries out a rolling programme that ensures all Property, Plant and Equipment required to be measured at current value is 
revalued at least every five years. For the 2018/ 19 financial year, valuations were carried out as at 31 March 2019. Increases in valuation are 
matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Where decreases (an impairment) in value are identified, they are 
accounted for as follows: 

• Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down 
against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains). 

• Where there is no balance on the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down 
against the relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

All valuations were carried out externally by independent valuers Capita Property and Infrastructure Ltd. Valuations of land and buildings were 
carried out in accordance with methodologies and basis for estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of 
Chartered Surveyors. Valuations of vehicles, plant and equipment are based on current prices where there is an active second-hand market or 
latest list prices adjusted for the condition of the asset. 

Assets are then carried on the Balance Sheet using the following measurement basis: 
• Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction - depreciated historical cost 
• Surplus Assets - fair value 
• All other Assets - current value 

Where there is no market-based evidence of current value because of the specialist nature of an asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is 
used as an estimate of current value. Where non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated historical 
cost basis is used as a proxy for current value. 

Fair Value - The council measures some of its non-financial assets, such as surplus assets and investment properties at fair value at each 
reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
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5.0 NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET 

market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability 
takes place either: 

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

The council measures the fair value of an asset or liability on the same basis that market participants would use when pricing the asset or 
liability (assuming those market participants were acting in their economic best interest). 

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the council takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic 
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and 
best use. 

The council uses appropriate valuation techniques for each circumstance, maximising the use of relevant known data and minimising the use of 
estimates or unknowns. This takes into account the three levels of categories for inputs to valuations for fair value assets: 

Level I - quoted prices. 
Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or 
indirectly. 
Level 3 - unobservable inputs for the asset or liability 
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5.0 NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET 

The council's surplus assets have been assessed as Level 3 for valuation purposes. 

I I I 111 

Carried at historical cost 3,350 219 4,284 7,853 

Valued at: 

31st March 2019 34,167 0 0 0 50 34,217 

31st March 2018 700 0 0 0 0 700 

31st March 2017 630 0 0 0 0 630 

3 I st March 20 16 1,397 0 0 0 0 1,397 

3 I st March 20 15 41 0 0 0 0 41 

Total cost or valuation 36,935 3,350 219 4,284 so 44,838 

5.01.2 Impairment 

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. Where indications exist and any 
possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying 
amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. 

There were no impairment losses recognised in the year (2017/18 had no impairment losses). Impairment losses are charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement then reversed out to the Capital Adjustments Account through the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. 
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5.0 NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET 

5.01.3 Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their 
useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life and assets that are not yet available for use such as assets 
under construction. 

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line allocation over the useful life of the assets. Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has 
major components whose cost is significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately. 

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value depreciation charged on assets and the 
depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the 
Capital Adjustment Account. 

Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 
• Infrastructure - straight line allocation 25 years 
• Buildings - straight line allocation over the life of the property as estimated by the valuer 
• Land - not depreciated 
• Assets under construction - not depreciated 
• Vehicles, plant and equipment - straight line allocation over 3 to 7 years 
• IT and Intangible Assets - straight line allocation over 5 years 

5.01.4 Capital Commitments 

At 31 March 2019, the council has no contracts for the construction or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment in 2019/20 and future 
years. 
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5.0 NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET 

5.0 1.5 Movements on Balances 

11 I 

Cost or Valuation 

At I April 2018 40,408 3,027 162 4,284 48 47,929 

Additions 355 323 57 0 0 734 

Revaluation increases/ (decreases) recognised in the 
(2,317) 0 0 0 (10) (2,327)

Revaluation Reserve 

Revaluation increases/ (decreases) recognised in the 
(1,511) 0 0 0 25 (1,485)

Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services 

Derecognition - disposals 0 0 0 0 ( 12) (12) 

At 31 March 2019 36,935 3,350 219 4,284 51 44,839 

Accumulated Depreciation & Impairment 

At I April 2018 

Depreciation charge 

(1,478) 

(1,319) 

(2,128) 

(160) 

( I 0) 

(8) 

(264) 

(65) 

(3) 

0 

(3,883) 
(1,552) 

Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve 2,194 0 0 0 0 2,194 

Depreciation written out to the Surplus / Deficit on 
the Provision of Services 

503 0 0 0 3 506 

At 3 I March 20 19 (IOI) (2,287) (18) (330) 0 (2,736) 

Net Book Value 
31 March 2019 36,835 1,063 201 3,954 51 ·42,103 

31 March 2018 38,930 900 152 4,020 45 44,047 
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5.0 NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET 

Cost or Valuation 

At I April 2017 24,458 2,421 130 4,209 22,930 50 54,198 

Additions 233 642 32 74 0 0 981 
Revaluation increases/ (decreases) recognised in the 
Revaluation Reserve 

(3,741) 0 0 0 0 0 (3,741) 

Revaluation increases/ (decreases) recognised in the 
Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services 

(3,385) 0 0 0 0 0 (3,385) 

Derecognition - disposals 0 (35) 0 0 0 (2) (37) 

Derecognicion - other 22,930 0 0 0 (22,930) 0 0 

Reclassifications (88) 0 0 0 0 0 (88) 

At31 March 2018 40,409 3,028 162 4,283 0 48 47,930 

Accumulated Depreciation & Impairment 

At I April 2017 (1,799) (2,05 I) (3) (201) 0 (4) (4,058) 

Depreciation charge (1,480) (108) (7) (62) 0 0 (1,657) 

Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve 1,327 0 0 0 0 0 1,327 
Depreciation written out to the Surplus / Deficit on the 
Provision of Services 

474 0 0 0 0 0 474 

Derecognicion - disposals 0 31 0 0 0 I 32 

At 31 March 2018 (1,479) (2,129) (10) (263) 0 (3) (3,883) 

Net Book Value 

3 I March 2018 38,930 900 152 4,020 0 45 44,047 

3 I March 2017 22,659 370 127 4,008 22,930 46 50,140 
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5.0 NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET 

5.02 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 

An investment property is defined as a property which is held exclusively for revenue generation or for the capital gains that the asset is 
expected to generate. In this respect, the asset is not used directly to deliver the council's services. 

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the amount at which the asset could be exchanged 
between knowledgeable parties at arms-length. Properties are not depreciated but are re-valued annually according to market conditions at the 
year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal. There are no restrictions on the council's 
ability to realise the value inherent in its investment property or on the council's right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of 
disposal. The council has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property. 

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment Income line and result in a gain for the 
General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on 
the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £I 0,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve. 

Fair Value - The council's investment property portfolio has been assessed as Level 2 for valuation purposes (see Note 5.01.1 for explanation 
of fair value levels). 

Valuations have taken account of the following factors: existing lease terms and rentals taken from the tenancy schedule, independent research 
into market evidence including Market rentals and yields, and then adjusted to reflect the nature of each business tenancy or void and the 
covenant strength for existing tenants. There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year for investment properties. 

The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the year: 
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	1.0 NARRATIVE REPORT 
	1.01 INTRODUCTION 
	The Statement of Accounts summarises the financial performance for financial year 2018/ 19 and the overall financial position of the Council. This Narrative Report explains the most significant matters reported in the accounts and provides a simple summary of the Council's overall financial position. 
	The Statement of Accounts for 2018/ 19 has been prepared on an International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) basis. The framework within which these Accounts are prepared and published is regulated by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). 
	Whilst these accounts are presented as simply as possible, the use of some technical terminology cannot be avoided. To aid a better understanding of the terminology used, a glossary of the terms is included at the end of the document. An explanation of the key financial statements including explanatory notes and other relevant supplementary information is also provided. 
	The key financial statements set out within this document include: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	The Statement of Responsibilities declares the respective responsibilities of the Council and the Head of Corporate Services and Section 151 Officer for the production of the Statement of Accounts. 

	• 
	• 
	The Expenditure and Funding Analysis is a note to the financial statements, rather than a key statement. It shows all income and expenditure incurred by the Council throughout the year under statutory funding provisions and the adjustments that are required to these figures to produce the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement under generally accepted accounting practices. 

	• 
	• 
	The Movement in Reserves Statement (MiRS) -this Statement sets out the movement on the different reserves held by the Council which are analysed into usable and unusable reserves. It analyses the increase or decrease in net worth of the Council as a result of incurring expenses, gathering income and from movements in the fair value of the assets. It also analyses the movement between reserves in accordance with statutory provisions. 

	• 
	• 
	The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) -this Statement brings together all the functions of the Council and summarises all the resources it has generated, consumed or set aside in providing services during the year. As such, it is intended to show the true financial position of the Council, before allowing for the concessions provided by statute to raise council tax according to different rules and the ability to divert particular expenditure to be met from capital resources. 

	• 
	• 
	The Balance Sheet -this records the Council's year-end financial position. It shows the balances and reserves at the Council's disposal, its long-term debt, net current assets or liabilities, and summarises information on the non-current assets held. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the 
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	Council can use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations 
	Council can use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations 
	Council can use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations 

	on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). 
	on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). 

	The second category of reserves is those that the Council cannot use to provide services. This category of reserves includes 
	The second category of reserves is those that the Council cannot use to provide services. This category of reserves includes 

	reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become 
	reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become 

	available to provide services if the assets 
	available to provide services if the assets 
	are sold; and 
	reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in 

	Reserves Statement line 'Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations'. 
	Reserves Statement line 'Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations'. 

	• 
	• 
	The Cash Flow Statement 
	-

	this summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising from transactions with third parties 

	TR
	for both capital and revenue. 

	• 
	• 
	Notes to the Financial Statements -the notes provide more detail about the items contained in the key financial 

	TR
	statements, the Council's Accounting Policies and other information to aid the understanding of the financial statements. 

	• 
	• 
	The Collection Fund 
	-

	the Council is responsible for collecting council tax and local business rates. The proceeds of council tax are 

	TR
	distributed to the Council, Hampshire County Council, Hampshire Police Authority, Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority and local 

	TR
	town/parish councils. Local business rates are distributed between the Council, the Government, Hampshire County Council and 

	TR
	Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority. The Fund shows the income due and application of the proceeds. 


	The Independent Auditor's Report explains how the Council's auditors, Ernst and Young LLP, plan their audit and the basis on which they provide an opinion on the Council's Statement of Accounts. It also gives the auditor's opinion on the Council's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources in the year. 
	The Annual Governance Statement accompanies the Statement of Accounts and explains how the Council ensures that its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. It is not covered by the auditor's opinion but is considered by the auditor and reported on by exception in the auditor's report if it is not compliant with proper practice. 
	1.0 NARRATIVE REPORT 
	1.02 HART DISTRICT 
	Hart District is primarily rural, covers some 21,500 hectares (83 sq. miles) and is situated in north-east Hampshire, bordering both Surrey and Berkshire. It is a popular place to live, as it benefits from low unemployment, low crime rates and good schools. It has a healthy, active population with high participation in sports and leisure. There are approximately 95,000 residents and an estimated 36,000 homes in Hart. There is an increasing and ageing population, with the number of residents expected to rise
	1.03 HART DISTRICT COUNCIL 
	Hart District Council ("the Council") comprises 33 Councillors who represent their 11 wards. Each ward has 3 Councillors who represent it, although once elected Councillors will make decisions for the whole district, not just for the ward they were elected for. Elections are held in 3 out of every 4 years, with one seat in each ward contested at each election. The political make-up of the Council is currently: Conservative Party I I, Community Campaign Hart I I, Liberal Democrat Party I0, and one independen
	The Council is a multifunctional organisation. Its policies are directed by the political leadership and implemented by the Officers of the Council. The Council has adopted the Leader and Cabinet model as its political management structure. The Leader of the Council has responsibility for the appointment of members of the Cabinet, the allocation of Portfolios and the delegation of Executive Functions. Cabinet Members are held to account by a system of scrutiny. 
	Supporting the work of Councillors is the organisational structure of the Council headed by the Joint Chief Executives, who are supported by four Heads of Service. 
	During the year the Council establishment was I 02 full-time equivalent employees. Most services are outsourced or shared with other councils. 
	1.0 NARRATIVE REPORT 
	1.04 CORPORATE STRATEGY 
	The Council has adopted a 5-year Corporate Plan for the period 2017-2022. It provides a focus for our activities and services and will inform decision making and allocation of resources across the Council. The Corporate Plan is centred around four priorities: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	A Thriving Local Economy 

	• 
	• 
	A Clean, Green and Safe Environment 

	• 
	• 
	Healthy Communities and People 

	• 
	• 
	An Efficient and Effective Council 


	The Corporate Plan is underpinned by a Service Plan which will run for the lifetime of the plan and be updated annually. This shows in detail how the Council will make progress against the priorities in the Corporate Plan. Each year a review is undertaken to update the Service Plan and ensure it continues to highlight the significant projects that the Council is taking forward in pursuit of its four corporate priorities. 
	For the 2019/20 Service Plan, measures that the Council intends to deliver include continuing to implement the new waste contract, supporting local communities to have more say in the future of their area, promoting the delivery of affordable housing and infrastructure in new developments, and initiatives to ensure the Council can achieve a greater level of financial self-sustainability. 
	Achievements in 20 18/ 19 
	The Council has made progress in a number of areas over the 2018/ 19 financial year. The majority relate to activities committed to in the 2017 -2022 Corporate Plan, although it has also taken advantage of opportunities that have arisen throughout the year. 
	Achievements include: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Successfully launched the £44 million joint waste and recycling contract with Basingstoke and Deane Borough Council and Serco in October 2018 

	• 
	• 
	Successfully completed the examination in public of the Hart Local Plan Strategy 

	• 
	• 
	Led on an innovative project bid to prevent Domestic Abuse and support victims across Hampshire and Dorset securing £1,297, 125 of funding for the partnership 


	1.0 NARRATIVE REPORT 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Implemented an Action Plan in response to the LGA Peer Review of March 2018 including: 

	o 
	o 
	o 
	Creation of a new vision for Hart in 2040 on which the public were consulted during December 2018 

	o 
	o 
	Publication of a new Organisational Development Strategy outlining the key skills and approaches needed for the Council into the future and the plans in place to make this happen 



	• 
	• 
	Completion of £390,000 of improvement works to Church Road Car Park, which commenced in 2017/ 18 

	• 
	• 
	Received the "Innovative Programme Award" from the Federation of Small Businesses 

	• 
	• 
	Submitted a bid to MHCLG and Homes England for a Garden Communities Settlement 

	• 
	• 
	Approved a framework for Commercialisation and an Inward Investment Strategy, with £500,000 ring-fenced for an invest to grow strategy 

	• 
	• 
	Received the Platinum Stray Dogs Footprint Award, from the RSPCA, after holding the Gold Footprint Award for over 5 years 

	• 
	• 
	Securing of an additional £14,573 of match funded grant towards the Hampshire Making Safe Scheme, allowing the scheme to continue until at least March 2019 

	• 
	• 
	Celebrated the first anniversary of the Hart Lottery which has supported 70 local causes and raised over £40,000 to date 

	• 
	• 
	Implemented the requirements of GDPR across the Council as well as new legislation associated with homelessness prevention 


	1.0 NARRATIVE REPORT 
	1.05 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE -REVENUE The Council's actual outturn for 2018/ 19 was a net nil spend, £27k higher than the budgeted deficit of £27k. 
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Corporate Services 
	Corporate Services 
	Corporate Services 
	3,494 
	6,199 
	2,705 

	Community Services 
	Community Services 
	1,231 
	(4,428) 
	(5,659) 

	Regulatory Services 
	Regulatory Services 
	1,396 
	1,619 
	223 

	Technical and Env. Maintenance 
	Technical and Env. Maintenance 
	2,382 
	1,997 
	(385) 

	Other Operating Expenditure 
	Other Operating Expenditure 
	2,969 
	3,011 
	42 

	Financial & Investment Income 
	Financial & Investment Income 
	111 
	575 
	464 

	Other Reserves and Provisions 
	Other Reserves and Provisions 
	3,051 
	7,996 
	4,944 


	Total Net Service Expenditure 
	Total Net Service Expenditure 
	Total Net Service Expenditure 
	14,634 
	16,967 
	2,333 

	Funding 
	Funding 

	New Homes Bonus 
	New Homes Bonus 
	(2,148) 
	(2,148) 
	(0) 

	Local Business Rates 
	Local Business Rates 
	(737) 
	(689) 
	48 

	Business Rate Top Up 
	Business Rate Top Up 
	0 
	(838) 
	(838) 

	Council Tax Receipts 
	Council Tax Receipts 
	(9,811) 
	(9,798) 
	13 

	Specific Grant 
	Specific Grant 
	0 
	(764) 
	(764) 

	Total Funding 
	Total Funding 
	(12,696) 
	(14,237) 
	(1,541) 

	Year End Accounting Adjustments (Pensions and Fixed Assets) 
	Year End Accounting Adjustments (Pensions and Fixed Assets) 
	(1,965) 
	(3,099) 
	(I, 134) 


	Revenue (Surplus)/Deficit (27) (369) (342) 
	Contribution to Earmarked Reserves 0 369 369 
	Grand Total (27) 0 
	1.0 NARRATIVE REPORT 
	1.06 CAPITAL BUDGET 
	The overall performance against the 2018/ 19 capital budget is shown in the table below: 
	Figure
	Figure
	Corporate Management 
	Corporate Management 
	Corporate Management 
	534 
	3 
	(531) 

	Housing and Customer Services 
	Housing and Customer Services 
	890 
	1,230 
	340 

	Leisure 
	Leisure 
	238 
	14 
	(224) 

	Environmental Promotion 
	Environmental Promotion 
	2,680 
	745 
	(1,935) 

	Technical Services 
	Technical Services 
	2,652 
	392 
	(2,260) 


	6,994 2,384 (4,610) 
	The significant capital expenditure in 2018/ 19 was on Disabled Facilities Grants, £865k and SI 06 £780k. The major areas of underspend on the capital programme were: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Environmental promotion -Bramshot Farm SANG scheme, underspend of £ 1.313m -spending on scheme stopped until further Suitable Alternative Natural Green Space (SANGS) income is received. 

	• 
	• 
	Technical Services-Refuse Vehicles -The budget contained £2.160m for a loan for Refuse Vehicles to SERCO. £1.741m was paid out for the loan but this debt is shown on the balance sheet as a long-term debtor. 


	The council's overall Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) decreased from £20,566,000 to £16,263,000, a reduction of £4,902.000. This decrease was due to financing of prior years' expenditure by capital grants and other contributions not received until 2018/19. Unfinanced capital spend is repaid via future charges to revenue (Minimum Revenue Provision), unless additional capital receipts are obtained to allow for the repayment of the CFR early. 
	1.0 NARRATIVE REPORT 
	The capital programme for 2018/ 19 was financed as follows: 
	Figure
	Unfinanced capital spend Disabled Facilities Grant Developers Contributions Other Contributions Usable Capital Receipts 
	679 865 780 
	55 5 
	2,384 
	1.0 NARRATIVE REPORT 
	Financing of Capital Expenditure 2018/19 £'000 
	55, 5 
	.. 
	Figure
	• Unfinanced Capital Spend Disabled Facilities Grant Developers Contributions 
	Other Contributions • Usable Capital Receipts 
	1.07 PENSION LIABILITY 
	The application of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 19 has resulted in a pension liability of £24.854m shown in the Balance Sheet, a decrease of£ 1.996m in the year. 
	The liability represents our share of the liability to Hampshire County Council's Pension Fund. This amount is matched by a Pensions Reserve also shown on the Balance Sheet and therefore has no immediate impact on the Council's overall financial position and its General Fund Balances (small differences may arise over the balance sheet date due to accruals being made for invoices not yet received). 
	Further details are set out in the Accounting Policies and Pension Note (Note 5.14). 
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	IAS 19 does not directly impact on the actual level of employer contributions paid to the Hampshire County Council Fund. Employers' levels of contributions are determined by triennial actuarial valuations which are based on the Fund's actual investment strategy (rather than being based on corporate bond yields). 
	The movement to the Fund is set out in more detail in note 5.14. The total liability has an impact on the net worth of the Council as recorded in the Balance Sheet. However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the council remains sound. The deficit on the scheme will be recovered through increased contributions over the remaining life of the employees as assessed by the actuary. 
	1.08 FlNANCIAL OUTLOOK 
	The Council no longer receives Revenue Support Grant from 2018/ 19. It is uncertain whether the Council will be able to achieve substantial increases in Non-Domestic Rates once 75% retention is introduced in 2020/21 as commercial development on a large scale is not anticipated. New Homes Bonus funding is also likely to reduce significantly. 
	However, continuing housing development is likely to lead to substantial increases in the council tax base. This growth, combined with savings from the leisure outsourcing contract, will enable the Council to become self-sufficient and balance its budget in the years ahead. Further income generation opportunities will also be explored. A Commercialisation Strategy to replace funds lost from reductions in New Homes Bonus was approved by Cabinet in August 2018. 
	It should be noted that there is considerable uncertainty nationally about local government finance levels from 2020/21, as a Fair Funding Review is currently under way which may lead to significant changes in the distribution of funding between council tiers. 
	Medium Term Financial Plan 
	The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is based on an analysis of the key influences on the Council's future financial position and an assessment of the main financial risks facing the Council. The financial forecast set out in the table below models income and expenditure and resources available over the next four years, and is considered to be the most likely outcome based on forecasts and assumptions for pay and price inflation, etc. 
	1.0 NARRATIVE REPORT 
	Given the uncertainty referred to above, the council continually models a range of MTFP scenarios. These are updated as more information becomes available or assumptions change. 
	Net Costs of Services 9,826 10,189 10,394 10,600 
	12 12 12
	Debt Interest 
	(2,283) (1,789) (I, 171) (505)
	New Homes Bonus 
	Net Budget Requirement 
	Net Budget Requirement 
	Net Budget Requirement 
	7,556 
	8,412 
	9,235 
	10,107 

	Retained Business Rates 
	Retained Business Rates 
	(1,258) 
	(1,280) 
	(1,320) 
	(1,360) 

	Revenue Support Grant 
	Revenue Support Grant 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 

	Collection Fund surplus/deficit 
	Collection Fund surplus/deficit 
	(24) 
	0 
	0 
	0 

	NNDR Reserve 
	NNDR Reserve 
	390 
	0 
	0 
	0 

	Council Tax Income 
	Council Tax Income 
	(6,792) 
	(7,083) 
	(7,362) 
	(7,648) 

	Council Tax Increase 
	Council Tax Increase 
	(202) 
	(203) 
	(205) 
	(205) 

	SI 06 Receipts 
	SI 06 Receipts 
	(53) 
	(53) 
	(53) 
	(53) 

	SANG Receipts 
	SANG Receipts 
	(61) 
	(220) 
	(220) 
	(220) 

	Commercial Income Target 
	Commercial Income Target 
	0 
	(42) 
	(544) 
	(1,090) 

	MRP/Loan repayments 
	MRP/Loan repayments 
	445 
	469 
	469 
	469 


	0 0 0 0
	To/From Reserves 
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	1.09 FURTHER INFORMATION 
	Further information about these accounts is available from: 
	Head of Corporate Services Hart District Council Civic Offices Harlington Way Fleet Hampshire GU51 4AE 
	Telephone: 01252 622122 Email: enquiries@hart.gov.uk 
	1.10 INSPECTION AND AUDIT 
	Interested members of the public have the statutory right to inspect these accounts before the audit is completed. For the 2018/ 19 accounts, the inspection period was I June to 12 July 2019. These dates were advertised on the Council's website. 
	2.0 STATEMENT OF RESPONBILITIES 
	2.0 I THE COUNCIL'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
	The council is required to: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this council, that officer is the Head of Corporate Services, Andrew Vallance. 

	• 
	• 
	Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets. 

	• 
	• 
	Approve the Statement of Accounts. 


	2.02 CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER RESPONSIBILITIES 
	The chief financial officer is responsible for the preparation of the authority's Statement of Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code). 
	In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the chief financial officer has: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently, 

	• 
	• 
	made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent, 

	• 
	• 
	complied with the local authority Code. 


	The Section I 51 Officer also: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	has kept proper accounting records which were up to date. 

	• 
	• 
	has taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities 


	2.03 CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER CERTIFICATE 2.04 CHAIRMAN OF AUDIT COMMITTEE CERTIFICATE 
	I certify that the Statement of Accounts 2018/ I 9 present a true and I certify that the Statement of Accounts 2018/ 19 has received the full fair view of the financial position of the council (the Balance Sheet) approval of Members. and of its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2019. 
	Signed Date Signed 
	Date cPFA MBA MA (OXON) Head of Corporate Services and S151 Officer Chris Axam 
	Andrew Vallance, 

	Chairman, Audit Committee 
	3.0 COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 
	This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. Councils raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
	Figure
	Community Services Corporate Services Regulatory Services Technical and Env. Maintenance Cost of Services Other Operating Expenditure Financial & Investment Income Taxation and non-specific grant income and Expenditure (Surplus) or Deficit on provision of services (Surplus) or Deficit on the revaluation of property, plant and equipment assets (Surplus) or Deficit on the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) 
	Community Services Corporate Services Regulatory Services Technical and Env. Maintenance Cost of Services Other Operating Expenditure Financial & Investment Income Taxation and non-specific grant income and Expenditure (Surplus) or Deficit on provision of services (Surplus) or Deficit on the revaluation of property, plant and equipment assets (Surplus) or Deficit on the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) 
	Community Services Corporate Services Regulatory Services Technical and Env. Maintenance Cost of Services Other Operating Expenditure Financial & Investment Income Taxation and non-specific grant income and Expenditure (Surplus) or Deficit on provision of services (Surplus) or Deficit on the revaluation of property, plant and equipment assets (Surplus) or Deficit on the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) 
	3.04 3.05 3.06 
	2,369 26,777 4,388 9,624 43,158 2,969 912 12,900 59,939 
	(1,585) (19,739) (2,716) (8,403) (32,444) (304) (159) (30,625) (63,531) 
	784 7,038 1,672 1,221 10,714 2,665 753 (17,725) (3,592) 2,414 (2) 190 
	3,169 24,806 3,362 9,761 41,097 3,109 941 11,604 56,751 
	(7,597) (18,608) (1,743) (7,764) (35,710) (98) (367) (25,841) (62,016) 
	(4,428) 6,199 1,619 1,997 5,387 3,011 575 (14,237) (5,265) 133 II (2,970) 

	Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
	Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
	2,602 
	(2,826) 

	Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
	Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
	(991) 
	(8,092) 


	4.0 MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT 
	The Movement in Reserves Statement shows the movement from the start to the end of the year on the different reserves held by the council, analysed into 'usable reserves' (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other 'unusable reserves'. The Statement shows how the movements in year of the council's reserves are broken down between gains and losses incurred in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and the statutory adjustments required to return to
	Figure
	Balance at 3 I March 2018 16,732 641 9,133 26,505 (4,097) 22,408 
	Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 5,265 0 0 5,265 2,826 8,092 Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under 
	(2,777) 105 352 (2,321) 2,321
	(2,777) 105 352 (2,321) 2,321
	regulation (Note 4.0 I) 

	Increase or (decrease) in year 2,488 105 352 2,945 5,147 8,092 
	Balance at 3 I March 2019 19,220 746 9,485 29,450 1,050 30,500 
	4.0 MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT 
	Figure
	I I I I I J 11 
	Balance at 3 I March 2017 13,776 352 5,043 19,171 2,246 21,417 
	Figure
	Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 3,592 0 0 3,592 (2,601) 991 Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under 
	(636) 289 4,089 3,742 (3,742) 0
	(636) 289 4,089 3,742 (3,742) 0
	regulation (Note 4.0 I) 

	Increase or (decrease) in year 2,956 289 4,089 7,334 (6,343) 991 
	Balance at 3 I March 20 18 16,732 641 9,132 26,505 (4,097) 22,408 
	5.0 BALANCE SHEET 
	Figure
	Property, plant & equipment 
	Property, plant & equipment 
	Property, plant & equipment 
	5.01 

	Other Land and Buildings 
	Other Land and Buildings 
	38,930 
	36,835 

	Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment 
	Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment 
	900 
	1,063 

	Infrastructure Assets 
	Infrastructure Assets 
	152 
	201 

	Community Assets 
	Community Assets 
	4,019 
	3,954 


	The Balance Sheet shows the value of the assets and liabilities recognised by the council as at the balance sheet date. The net assets of the council (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the council. 
	Surplus Assets 45 51 44,046 42,104 
	Short term borrowing 5.08 (1,064) (1,372)
	Short term borrowing 5.08 (1,064) (1,372)
	Investment properties 5.02 70 70 
	Short term creditors 5.09 (8,328) (10,042)
	Intangible Assets 5.03 35 17 
	Provisions 5.10 (476) (334)
	Long term debtors 5.05 0 1,321 

	Current Liabilities (9,869) (11,748)
	Current Liabilities (9,869) (11,748)
	Long Term Assets 44,151 43,512 

	Long term borrowing 5.08 (13,532) (12,277)
	Long term borrowing 5.08 (13,532) (12,277)
	Short term investments 11,01 I 12,000 

	Pension Liability 5.15 (26,850) (24,854)
	Assets held for sale 5.07 88 88 
	Long Term Liabilities (40,382) (37,130)
	Short term debtors 5.05 4,699 4,517 Cash and cash equivalents 5.06 12,711 19,261 
	Net Assets 22,408 30,500
	Current Assets 28,508 35,866 
	Figure
	5.0 BALANCE SHEET 
	Usable reserves 
	Usable reserves 
	Usable reserves 

	Earmarked Reserves 
	Earmarked Reserves 
	5.11 

	General Fund 
	General Fund 

	Capital Receipts 
	Capital Receipts 

	Capital Grants Unapplied 
	Capital Grants Unapplied 

	Unusable reserves 
	Unusable reserves 

	Revaluation Reserve 
	Revaluation Reserve 
	5.12.1 

	Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve 
	Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve 
	5.12.2 

	Capital Adjustment Account 
	Capital Adjustment Account 
	5.12.3 

	Financial Instrument Adjustment Account 
	Financial Instrument Adjustment Account 
	5.12.4 

	Pension Reserve 
	Pension Reserve 
	5.12.5 

	Collection Fund 
	Collection Fund 
	5.12.6 

	Accumulated Absences 
	Accumulated Absences 
	5.12.7 


	Figure
	11,194 5,537 641 9,133 
	26,505 
	3,715 11 19,358 235 (26,693) (680) (43) 
	(4,097) Total Reserves 22,408 
	13,682 5,537 746 9,484 
	29,450 
	3,451 0 22,564 23 (24,773) (167) (48) 
	1,050 
	30,500 
	Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the council may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves is those that the council is not able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves 
	6.0 CASHFLOW STATEMENT 
	The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the council during the reporting period. The statement shows how the council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the council are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the council
	This cash flow statement is prepared using the indirect method whereby the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services is adjusted for non­cash items, removing the effects of accruals and extracting transactions relating to investing or financing activities. 
	Figure
	Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services 3,592 5,265 Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-cash movements 7,924 3,133 Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services that are investing and 
	(5,303) (7,320)
	financing activities 
	Net cash flows from Operating Activities 6.01 6,213 1,078 
	Investing Activities 6.02 585 6,016 Financing Activities 6.03 (906) (544) Net increase or (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5,892 6,550 
	Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 6,820 12,712 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 5.06 12,712 19,262 
	3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 
	3.0 I EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS 
	The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources (government grants, rents, council tax and business rates) by local authorities in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the council's services. Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is presente
	Figure
	Figure
	I ti 
	Community Services 1,044 260 784 778 5,206 (4,428) Corporate Services 2,278 (4,759) 7,038 3,049 (3,149) 6,199 Regulatory Services 1,640 (31) 1,672 1,545 (75) 1,619 
	Technical and Env. 
	1,424 203 1,221 1,539 (457) 1,997
	Maintenance 
	Cost of Services 6,387 (4,328) 10,714 6,911 1,524 5,387 
	Other income and 
	(9,343) 4,964 (14,307) (9,398) 1,254 (I 0,652)
	expenditure 
	(Surplus) or Deficit 
	(Surplus) or Deficit 
	(Surplus) or Deficit 
	(2,956) 
	636 
	(3,592) 
	(2,487) 
	2,778 
	(5,265) 

	Opening General Fund Balance Plus Surplus on General Fund in year Closing General Fund Balance 
	Opening General Fund Balance Plus Surplus on General Fund in year Closing General Fund Balance 
	(13,777) (2,956) (16,733) 
	(16,733) (2,487) (19,220) 
	Includes transfers to earmarked reserves 


	3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 
	3.02 NOTE TO THE EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS 
	Figure
	Community Services 
	Community Services 
	Community Services 
	5,217 
	(10) 
	(I) 
	5,206 

	Corporate Services 
	Corporate Services 
	(2,656) 
	(494) 
	I 
	(3,149) 

	Regulatory Services 
	Regulatory Services 
	(53) 
	(20) 
	(2) 
	(75) 

	Technical and Env. Maintenance 
	Technical and Env. Maintenance 
	(438) 
	(17) 
	(2) 
	(457) 

	Net Cost of Services 
	Net Cost of Services 
	2,070 
	(541) 
	(5) 
	1,524 

	Other income and expenditure from the Expenditure and Funding Analysis 
	Other income and expenditure from the Expenditure and Funding Analysis 
	1,250 
	(510) 
	513 
	1,254 

	Difference between General Fund surplus or deficit and Comprehensive 
	Difference between General Fund surplus or deficit and Comprehensive 

	Income and Expenditure Statement Surplus or Deficit on the Provision 
	Income and Expenditure Statement Surplus or Deficit on the Provision 
	3,320 
	(1,051) 
	508 
	2,778 

	of Services 
	of Services 


	3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 
	Figure
	Community Services 278 ( 15) (2) 261 Corporate Services (4,373) (38) (9) (4,420) Regulatory Services (341) (33) (3) (378) Technical and Env. Maintenance (81) (14) 304 209 Net Cost of Services (4,517) (100) 290 (4,327) 
	Other income and expenditure from the Expenditure and Funding Analysis 4,640 (472) 797 4,965 
	Difference between General Fund surplus or deficit and Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 122 (573) 1,087 638 Services 
	3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 
	Adjustments for Capital Purposes 
	For Services this column adds in depreciation, impairment and revaluations gains and losses. 
	Other operating expenditure -adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income on disposal of assets and the amounts written off for those assets. Financing and investment income and expenditure -the statutory charges for capital financing i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision and other revenue contributions are deducted from other income and expenditure as these are not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices. Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure -capital grants are adjust
	Net change for the Pensions Adjustments 
	Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits pension related expenditure and income: For services this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the authority as allowed by statute and the replacement with current service costs and past service costs. For Financing and investment income and expenditure -the net interest on the defined benefit liability is charged to the CIES. 
	Other Differences 
	Other differences between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and amounts 
	payable/receivable to be recognised under statute: For services this represents the change in the accumulated absences reserve attributable to each service. For Financing and investment income and expenditure the other differences column recognises adjustments to the General Fund for the timing differences for premiums and discounts. The charge under Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure represents the difference between what is chargeable under statutory regulations for council tax and NDR
	3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 
	3.03 INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ANALYSED BY NATURE 
	The authority's expenditure and income is analysed as follows: 
	Figure
	Expenditure 
	Employee benefits expenses 
	Other services expenses 
	Depreciation, amortisation, impairment 
	Interest payments 
	Precepts and levies 
	Non-domestic rates tariff, levy and deficit charges 
	Total Expenditure 
	Income 
	Fees, charges and other service income 
	Interest and investment income 
	Income from council tax and non-domestic rates 
	Government grants and contributions 
	Gain on the disposal of assets 
	Total Income 
	Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 
	5,353 32,477 5,328 912 2,969 12,900 59,939 
	(31,321) (I 59) (23,952) (7,796) (304) (63,531) 
	(3,592) 
	6,296 30,603 4,198 941 3,109 11,604 
	56,751 
	(34,705) (367) (22,929) (3,917) (98) 
	(62,016) 
	(5,265) 
	3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 
	3.04 OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURE 
	Figure
	Parish council precepts 
	Parish council precepts 
	Parish council precepts 
	2,969 
	3,109 

	(Gains)/loss on the disposal of non-current assets 
	(Gains)/loss on the disposal of non-current assets 
	(304) 
	(98) 

	TR
	2,665 
	3,01 I 


	3.05 FINANCING AND INVESTMENT INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
	Figure
	Interest payable and similar charges 
	Interest payable and similar charges 
	Interest payable and similar charges 
	282 
	272 

	Net interest on the defined benefit liability 
	Net interest on the defined benefit liability 
	630 
	670 

	Interest receivable and similar income 
	Interest receivable and similar income 
	(129) 
	(367) 

	(Income) and expenditure in relation to investment properties and changes in their fair value 
	(Income) and expenditure in relation to investment properties and changes in their fair value 
	(30) 
	0 

	TR
	753 
	575 


	3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 
	3.06 TAXATION AND NON SPECIFIC GRANT INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
	Figure
	Council tax income Revenue Support Grant Non-domestic rates income and safety net Non-domestic rates tariff, levy and deficit charges Non-ring fenced government grants Capital grants and contributions 
	t II 
	(9,394) (82) (14,558) 12,900 (2,407) (4,183) (17,725) 
	(9,798) 0 (13,131) 11,604 (2,192) (720) 
	(14,237) 
	The breakdown of 'non-ring fenced government grants' and 'capital grants and contributions' can be seen in more detail in note 3.12 Grant Income. 
	3.07 MATERIAL ITEMS OF INCOME AND EXPENSE 
	The council incurs significant expenditure through its delivery of services to the council tax payer and receives significant income from a number of sources to fund this. For example, the council incurs a significant proportion of it's spend on benefit payments, which is funded predominantly by government grants. This income and expenditure is reported in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and is supported by notes within this section. 
	The council does not consider that there were any other material items of income and/or expense that weren't incurred and/or received in the normal day to day provision of the services. 
	3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 
	3.08 AGENCY SERVICES 
	The council provides a number of services on behalf of Hampshire County Council. In 2018/ 19 the council received £ I 55,970 for providing these services (20 17/ I 8 £198, 159). 
	3.09 MEMBERS ALLOWANCES 
	The council paid the following amounts to members of the council during the year: 
	Figure
	Allowances 
	Allowances 
	Allowances 
	238 
	237 

	Expenses 
	Expenses 
	7 
	7 

	TR
	245 
	244 


	3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 
	3.10 OFFICERS' REMUNERATION AND TERMINATION BENEFITS 
	3.10.1 Remuneration 
	The remuneration paid to the council's senior employees is shown below. 
	Figure
	2018/19 96,183 3,869 0 14,445 114,497
	Joint Chief Executive 
	Joint Chief Executive 
	2017/18 94,297 3,869 0 13,295 111,461 

	2018/19 96,183 3,871 0 14,445 114,498
	Joint Chief Executive 
	2017/18 93,337 3,869 0 13,161 110,367 Section 151 Officer and Head of 1,239 0 12,044 93,461 2017/18 74,981 1,239 0 10,694 86,914 
	2018/19 80,178 
	Corporate Services 

	2018/19 67,852 3,000 0 10,190 81,042
	Head of Environmental Maintenance 
	Head of Environmental Maintenance 
	2017/18 66,522 3,000 0 9,380 78,902 

	2018/19 86,484 1,198 39,751 9,839 137,272
	Head of Regulatory Services 
	2017/18 65,136 1,239 0 9,184 75,559 2018/19 0 0 0 0 0 
	Head of Housing"' 
	Head of Housing"' 
	2017/18 37,646 716 0 5,245 43,607 

	2018/19 59,826 1,661 0 9,034 70,521
	Head of Community Services,f::f; 
	2017/18 0 0 0 0 0 
	* Head of Housing left post in October 2017 ** Head of Community Services started in May 2018 
	Hart District Council -31 -Statement of Accounts 20 18/20 19 
	3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 
	The council's other employees whose remuneration, excluding employer's pension contributions, was £50,000 or more in bands of £5,000 were: 
	Figure
	£50,000 to £54,999 £55,000 to £59,999 £60,000 to £64,999 £65,000 to £69,999 
	£50,000 to £54,999 £55,000 to £59,999 £60,000 to £64,999 £65,000 to £69,999 
	£50,000 to £54,999 £55,000 to £59,999 £60,000 to £64,999 £65,000 to £69,999 
	3 
	2 0 2 I 

	TR
	6 
	s 


	3.10.2 Termination Benefits 
	Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the council to terminate an officer's employment before the normal retirement date or an officer's decision to accept voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at the earlier of when the council can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the council recognises costs for a restructuring. 
	Table on following page. 
	3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 
	The number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other redundancies are set out in the table below: 
	Figure
	£0 -£20,000 
	£0 -£20,000 
	£0 -£20,000 
	0 
	0 
	I 
	0 
	0 
	1,783 
	0 

	£20,00 I -£40,000 
	£20,00 I -£40,000 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 

	£40,00 I -£60,000 
	£40,00 I -£60,000 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	57,024 


	0 0 1,783 57,024 
	3.11 EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS 
	The council has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts and certification of grant claims provided by the council's external auditors, Ernst and Young LLP. 
	Figure
	Figure
	Fees payable to external auditors with regard to external audit services carried out by the appointed auditor for the year 
	Fees payable to external auditors with regard to external audit services carried out by the appointed auditor for the year 
	Fees payable to external auditors with regard to external audit services carried out by the appointed auditor for the year 
	54 
	44 

	Fees payable to external auditors for the certification of grant claims and returns for the year 
	Fees payable to external auditors for the certification of grant claims and returns for the year 
	13 
	10 

	TR
	67 
	54 


	3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 
	3.12 GRANT INCOME 
	Grants, third party contributions and donations are recognised as due to the council when there is reasonable assurance that: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	The council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 

	• 
	• 
	The grants or contributions will be received. 


	Amounts recognised as due to the council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the revenue grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the revenue grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or the future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor. 
	Monies advanced as revenue grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non ring-fenced grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
	Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capit
	3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 
	The council credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 2018/ 19: 
	Figure
	Figure
	Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income 
	Non-ring fenced Government Grants New Homes Bonus Revenue Support Grant Council Tax Freeze Grant Other Non-ring fenced Government Grants. 
	Capital Grants and Contributions Developer's Leisure Contributions Donated Land Other Capital Grants and Contributions 
	Credited to Services 
	Housing Benefits Subsidy Disabled Facilities Grant Welfare Other Grants and Contributions 
	(2,276) (2,148) (82) 0 0 0 
	( 131) 
	( 131) 
	( 131) 
	(43) 

	(2,490) 
	(2,490) 
	(2,192) 

	(3,995) 
	(3,995) 
	(705) 

	0 
	0 
	0 

	(188) 
	(188) 
	(15) 


	(4,183) (720) 
	(6,673) 
	(6,673) 
	(6,673) 
	(2,912) 

	(15,459) (697) (608) (883) 
	(15,459) (697) (608) (883) 
	(14,051) (685) (758) (432) 


	(17,646) ( I 5,925) 
	3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 
	The council has received a number of grants, contributions and donations that have yet to be recognised as income as they have conditions attached to them that will require the monies or property to be returned to the giver. The balances at the year-end are as follows: 
	Figure
	Grampian Conditions 2,575 4,821 2,575 4,821 
	These Grampian conditions prohibit development to begin until a specific action has been completed. If the development was cancelled these funds would be payable back to the developer. 
	3.13 OPERATING LEASES 
	3.13.1 Council as Lessee 
	Leases that do not meet the definition of finance leases are accounted for as operating leases and the expenditure is charged to service revenue accounts on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The land and buildings elements of a lease require separate identification for both lease classifications and subsequent valuation. In most cases, the land element of a lease will be an operating lease. 
	The council has not entered into any operating leases to procure any property, plant, vehicles or equipment. 
	3.13.2 Council as Lessor 
	Where the council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments. 
	3.0 NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 
	The Council owns a number of property, plant and equipment assets that are leased to other bodies for one or a combination of the following purposes: 
	To gain rental income from its investment properties For economic development purposes to provide suitable affordable accommodation for local businesses. To provide leisure facilities for public use. 
	The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years are: 
	Figure
	Not later than one year 
	Not later than one year 
	Not later than one year 
	(790) 
	(1,182) 

	Later than one year and not later than five years 
	Later than one year and not later than five years 
	(5,431) 
	(5,875) 

	Later than five years 
	Later than five years 
	(7,139) 
	(5,598) 

	TR
	(13,360) 
	(12,655) 


	3.14 CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 
	At 31 March 2019 the council did not have any construction contracts. 
	4.0 NOTES TO THE MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT 
	4.01 ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING BASIS UNDER REGULATIONS 
	This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure recognised by the authority in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to arrive at the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the authority to meet future capital and revenue expenditure. The following sets out a description of the reserves that the adjustments are made against. 
	General Fund Balance The General Fund is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of an authority are required to paid and out of which all liabilities of the authority are to be met, except to the extent that statutory rules might provide otherwise. These rules can also specify the financial year in which liabilities and payments should impact on the General Fund Balance, which is not necessarily in accordance with proper accounting practice. The General Fund Balance therefore summarises the resource
	Capital Receipts Reserve 
	The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets, which are restricted by statute from being used other than to fund new capital expenditure or to be set aside to finance historical capital expenditure. The balance on the reserve shows the resources that have yet to be applied for these purposes at the year-end. 
	Capital Grants Unapplied 
	The Capital Grants Unapplied Account (Reserve) holds the grants and contributions received towards capital projects for which the council has met the conditions that would otherwise require repayment of the monies but which have yet to be applied to meet expenditure. The balance is restricted by grant terms as to the capital expenditure against which it can be applied and/or the financial year in which this can take place. 
	4.0 NOTES TO THE MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT 
	Figure
	Adjustments to the Revenue Resources 
	Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are different from revenue for the year calculated in accordance with statutory requirements 
	Pensions Costs (transferred to (or from) the Pensions Reserve) Financial Instruments (transferred to the Financial Instruments Adjustments Account) Council tax and NDR (transfers to (or from) Collection Fund) Holiday Pay (transferred to the Accumulated Absences Reserve) 
	Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provisions of Services in relation to capital expenditure (these items are charged to the Capital Adjustment Account) 
	Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources 
	Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds from revenue to the Capital Receipts Reserve Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (transfer from the Capital Adjustment Account) Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances (transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account) 
	1,051 211 (513) 5 
	(2,999) 352 
	(2,245) 352 
	(110) 110 
	(422) 
	0 
	Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources Adjustments to Capital Resources Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital expenditure Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 
	Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources Adjustments to Capital Resources Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital expenditure Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 
	Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources Adjustments to Capital Resources Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital expenditure Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 
	(532) 
	110 (5) (5) 
	0 

	Total Adjustments 
	Total Adjustments 
	(2,777) 
	105 
	352 
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	Adjustments to the Revenue Resources 
	Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are different from revenue for the year calculated in accordance with statutory requirements 
	Pensions Costs (transferred to (or from) the Pensions Reserve) Financial Instruments (transferred to the Financial Instruments Adjustments Account) Council tax and NDR (transfers to (or from) Collection Fund) Holiday Pay (transferred to the Accumulated Absences Reserve) 
	Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provisions of Services in relation to capital expenditure (these items are charged to the Capital Adjustment Account) 
	Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources 
	Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds from revenue to the Capital Receipts Reserve Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (transfer from the Capital Adjustment Account) Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances (transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account) 
	573 (235) (797) 
	13 
	297 4,089 
	(148) 4,089 
	(310) 310 (178) 
	0 
	Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources Adjustments to Capital Resources Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital expenditure Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 
	Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources Adjustments to Capital Resources Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital expenditure Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 
	Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources Adjustments to Capital Resources Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital expenditure Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 
	(488) 
	310 (21) (21) 
	0 

	Total Adjustments 
	Total Adjustments 
	(636) 
	289 
	4,089 


	5.0 NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET 
	5.0 I PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
	Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment. 
	Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and equipment is capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the authority and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset's potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurre
	Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising the purchase price plus any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating on the manner intended by management. 
	Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and any consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income and Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account. Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance to th
	Charges to Revenue for Non-current Assets -Services and support services are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service 

	• 
	• 
	revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off 

	• 
	• 
	amortisation of intangible assets attributable to the service 


	The council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or amortisation. However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue, the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement (equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the council in accordance with statutory guidance). Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisation are therefore replaced by the contribution i
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	Component Accounting -Where components of an asset are significant in value in relation to the value of the asset as a whole, and they have substantially different economic lives, they will be recognised separately. Components will be recognised separately as and when they are replaced or re-valued. Individual assets valued at less than £200,000 will be disregarded for componentisation. 
	5.01.1 Revaluations 
	The council carries out a rolling programme that ensures all Property, Plant and Equipment required to be measured at current value is revalued at least every five years. For the 2018/ 19 financial year, valuations were carried out as at 31 March 2019. Increases in valuation are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Where decreases (an impairment) in value are identified, they are accounted for as follows: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains). 

	• 
	• 
	Where there is no balance on the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 


	All valuations were carried out externally by independent valuers Capita Property and Infrastructure Ltd. Valuations of land and buildings were carried out in accordance with methodologies and basis for estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Valuations of vehicles, plant and equipment are based on current prices where there is an active second-hand market or latest list prices adjusted for the condition of the asset. 
	Assets are then carried on the Balance Sheet using the following measurement basis: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction -depreciated historical cost 

	• 
	• 
	Surplus Assets -fair value 

	• 
	• 
	All other Assets -current value 


	Where there is no market-based evidence of current value because of the specialist nature of an asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of current value. Where non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated historical cost basis is used as a proxy for current value. 
	Fair Value -The council measures some of its non-financial assets, such as surplus assets and investment properties at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
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	market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

	• 
	• 
	In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 


	The council measures the fair value of an asset or liability on the same basis that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability (assuming those market participants were acting in their economic best interest). 
	When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the council takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 
	The council uses appropriate valuation techniques for each circumstance, maximising the use of relevant known data and minimising the use of estimates or unknowns. This takes into account the three levels of categories for inputs to valuations for fair value assets: 
	Level I -quoted prices. 
	Level 2 -inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or 
	indirectly. 
	Level 3 -unobservable inputs for the asset or liability 
	5.0 NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET 
	The council's surplus assets have been assessed as Level 3 for valuation purposes. 
	Figure
	I I I 111 
	Figure
	Carried at historical cost 
	Carried at historical cost 
	Carried at historical cost 
	3,350 
	219 
	4,284 
	7,853 

	Valued at: 
	Valued at: 

	31st March 2019 
	31st March 2019 
	34,167 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	50 
	34,217 

	31st March 2018 
	31st March 2018 
	700 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	700 

	31st March 2017 
	31st March 2017 
	630 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	630 

	3 I st March 20 16 
	3 I st March 20 16 
	1,397 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	1,397 

	3 I st March 20 15 
	3 I st March 20 15 
	41 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	41 


	Total cost or valuation 36,935 3,350 219 4,284 so 44,838 
	5.01.2 Impairment 
	Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. 
	There were no impairment losses recognised in the year (2017/18 had no impairment losses). Impairment losses are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement then reversed out to the Capital Adjustments Account through the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
	5.0 NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET 
	5.01.3 Depreciation 
	Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life and assets that are not yet available for use such as assets under construction. 
	Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line allocation over the useful life of the assets. Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components whose cost is significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately. 
	Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
	Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Infrastructure -straight line allocation 25 years 

	• 
	• 
	Buildings -straight line allocation over the life of the property as estimated by the valuer 

	• 
	• 
	Land -not depreciated 

	• 
	• 
	Assets under construction -not depreciated 

	• 
	• 
	Vehicles, plant and equipment -straight line allocation over 3 to 7 years 

	• 
	• 
	IT and Intangible Assets -straight line allocation over 5 years 


	5.01.4 Capital Commitments 
	At 31 March 2019, the council has no contracts for the construction or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment in 2019/20 and future years. 
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	5.0 1.5 Movements on Balances 
	Figure
	11 I 
	Figure
	Cost or Valuation At I April 2018 40,408 3,027 162 4,284 48 47,929 Additions 355 323 57 0 0 734 
	Revaluation increases/ (decreases) recognised in the 
	Revaluation increases/ (decreases) recognised in the 
	(2,317) 0 0 0 (10) (2,327)
	Revaluation Reserve 

	Revaluation increases/ (decreases) recognised in the 
	Revaluation increases/ (decreases) recognised in the 
	(1,511) 0 0 0 25 (1,485)
	Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services 

	Derecognition -disposals 0 0 0 0 ( 12) (12) 
	At 31 March 2019 36,935 3,350 219 4,284 51 44,839 
	Accumulated Depreciation & Impairment At I April 2018 Depreciation charge 
	Accumulated Depreciation & Impairment At I April 2018 Depreciation charge 
	Accumulated Depreciation & Impairment At I April 2018 Depreciation charge 
	(1,478) (1,319) 
	(2,128) (160) 
	( I 0) (8) 
	(264) (65) 
	(3) 0 
	(3,883) (1,552) 

	Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve 
	Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve 
	2,194 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	2,194 

	Depreciation written out to the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services 
	Depreciation written out to the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services 
	503 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	3 
	506 


	At 3 I March 20 19 (IOI) (2,287) (18) (330) 0 (2,736) 
	Net Book Value 
	Net Book Value 
	Net Book Value 

	31 March 2019 
	31 March 2019 
	36,835 
	1,063 
	201 
	3,954 
	51 
	·42,103 

	31 March 2018 
	31 March 2018 
	38,930 
	900 
	152 
	4,020 
	45 
	44,047 
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	Figure
	Cost or Valuation 
	Cost or Valuation 
	Cost or Valuation 

	At I April 2017 
	At I April 2017 
	24,458 
	2,421 
	130 
	4,209 
	22,930 
	50 
	54,198 

	Additions 
	Additions 
	233 
	642 
	32 
	74 
	0 
	0 
	981 

	Revaluation increases/ (decreases) recognised in the Revaluation Reserve 
	Revaluation increases/ (decreases) recognised in the Revaluation Reserve 
	(3,741) 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	(3,741) 

	Revaluation increases/ (decreases) recognised in the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services 
	Revaluation increases/ (decreases) recognised in the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services 
	(3,385) 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	(3,385) 

	Derecognition -disposals 
	Derecognition -disposals 
	0 
	(35) 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	(2) 
	(37) 

	Derecognicion -other 
	Derecognicion -other 
	22,930 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	(22,930) 
	0 
	0 

	Reclassifications 
	Reclassifications 
	(88) 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	(88) 


	At31 March 2018 40,409 3,028 162 4,283 0 48 47,930 
	Accumulated Depreciation & Impairment 
	Accumulated Depreciation & Impairment 
	Accumulated Depreciation & Impairment 

	At I April 2017 
	At I April 2017 
	(1,799) 
	(2,05 I) 
	(3) 
	(201) 
	0 
	(4) 
	(4,058) 

	Depreciation charge 
	Depreciation charge 
	(1,480) 
	(108) 
	(7) 
	(62) 
	0 
	0 
	(1,657) 

	Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve 
	Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve 
	1,327 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	1,327 

	Depreciation written out to the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services 
	Depreciation written out to the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services 
	474 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	474 

	Derecognicion -disposals 
	Derecognicion -disposals 
	0 
	31 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	I 
	32 


	At 31 March 2018 (1,479) (2,129) (10) (263) 0 (3) (3,883) 
	Net Book Value 
	Net Book Value 
	Net Book Value 

	3 I March 2018 
	3 I March 2018 
	38,930 
	900 
	152 
	4,020 
	0 
	45 
	44,047 

	3 I March 2017 
	3 I March 2017 
	22,659 
	370 
	127 
	4,008 
	22,930 
	46 
	50,140 


	5.0 NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET 
	5.02 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 
	An investment property is defined as a property which is held exclusively for revenue generation or for the capital gains that the asset is expected to generate. In this respect, the asset is not used directly to deliver the council's services. 
	Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the amount at which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arms-length. Properties are not depreciated but are re-valued annually according to market conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on dispos
	Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment Income line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £I 0,000)
	Fair Value -The council's investment property portfolio has been assessed as Level 2 for valuation purposes (see Note 5.01.1 for explanation of fair value levels). 
	Valuations have taken account of the following factors: existing lease terms and rentals taken from the tenancy schedule, independent research into market evidence including Market rentals and yields, and then adjusted to reflect the nature of each business tenancy or void and the covenant strength for existing tenants. There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year for investment properties. 
	The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the year: 
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure







